ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2007
3:07 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Fai rcl ough
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 1

Relating to reauthorization of federal funding for children's
health insurance; and encouraging the Governor to support
addi ti onal funding for and access to children's  health
i nsurance.

- MOVED SJR 1 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 181

"An Act relating to traffic offenses and traffic offenses
commtted in a school zone; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSHB 181(HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 100

"An Act relating to exenpting certain air anbulance services
from insurance regulation and requiring certain air anbul ance
services to provide services."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 207

"An Act relating to questionnaires and surveys admnistered in
t he public schools.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2007



- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SJR 1
SHORT TI TLE: MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE FOR CHI LDREN

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

02/ 07/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 07/ 07 (S) HES, FIN

02/ 19/ 07 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 19/ 07 (S Bi || Postponed To 2/26/07

02/ 26/ 07 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 26/ 07 (S) Moved SJR 1 Qut of Committee

02/ 26/ 07 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 28/ 07 (S) HES RPT 5DP

02/ 28/ 07 (S) DP: DAVI S, ELTON,  THOWVAS,
DYSON

03/ 05/ 07 (S FI' N REFERRAL WAI VED

03/ 14/ 07 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 14/ 07 (S) VERSION: SJR 1

03/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 16/ 07 (H HES, FIN

03/ 31/ 07 (H) HES AT 12: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 31/ 07 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 03/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 181

SHORT TI TLE: TRAFFI C OFFENSES: FI NES/ SCHOOL ZONES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

03/ 07/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 07/ 07 (H HES, JUD

03/ 22/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 22/ 07 (H M NUTE( HES)

03/ 27/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 27/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 27/ 07 (H M NUTE( HES)

04/ 03/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 100

SHORT TI TLE: Al R AMBULANCE SERVI CES

SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -2- Apri |

CONDERY,

3, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (H HES, L&C

02/ 15/ 07 (H SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
02/ 15/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 15/ 07 (H HES, L&C

02/ 22/ 07 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 22/ 07 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 01/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 07 (H M NUTE( HES)

03/ 13/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 13/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 13/ 07 (H M NUTE( HES)

04/ 03/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

Rl CHARD BENAVI DES, St af f

to Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SJR 1 on behalf of Senator Bettye
Davi s, sponsor.

ROBERT MYERS, Intern

to Representative Peggy WI son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 181, on
behal f of Representative Peggy W/I son, prine sponsor.

MARY SI ROKY, Legislative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced DOT&PF staff during the hearing
on HB 181.

KURTIS SMTH, Traffic and Safety Engi neer

Di vi sion of Design & Engi neering Services

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
181.

DENNI S COOK, Transportation Coordi nator

Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2007



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 181.

LT. RODNEY DI AL, Deputy Conmander

A Det achnent

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

Departnent of Public Safety

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
181.

KAREN LI DSTER, St aff

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Re-introduced SSHB 100, as anended, on
behal f of Representative John Coghill, prinme sponsor.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Anchorage Ofice

Di vi sion of Insurance

Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
SSHB 100.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:07:09 PM
Representatives WIson, Seaton, Gardner, Roses, Fairclough, and
Neuman were present at the call to order. Representative C ssna
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

SJR 1- MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE FOR CHI LDREN

3:07:15 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
SENATE JO NT RESCLUTION NO. 1, Relating to reauthorization of
federal funding for children's health insurance; and encouragi ng
the CGovernor to support additional funding for and access to
children's health insurance.

3:07: 44 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2007



RI CHARD BENAVI DES, staff to Senator Bettye Davis, presented SJR
1, on behalf of the prine sponsor, paraphrasing from a prepared
st at enment which read as follows [ origi nal punct uati on
provi ded] :

SJR 1, Medical Assistance for Children states that the
Alaska State Legislature urges our Congressional
del egation to work diligently to achieve a tinely
reaut hori zation  of the State Children's Heal t h
| nsurance Program and to continue federal nedical
assistance percentages (or FMAP) for the Denal
Ki dCare program

Denali KidCare 1is Alaska's version of the state
Children's Health Insurance program of SCH P which was
created in 1997 and is slated for reauthorization this
year. It has been and continues to be a successful
federal -state partnership, now covering over 4 mllion
| ow-i nconme children and enjoying bipartisan support.
However, in the upcomng federal fiscal vyear, 17-18
states, anong them Al aska, are projected to have
insufficient federal SCH P funding to sustain their
exi sting SCH P prograns.

According to various estimates by the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services, the Congressional
Research Service and other independent analysts, these
states will face an estimated $800 to $950 nmillion in
total funding shortfalls in 2007. Here in Al aska that
shortfall could total over $12 mllion.

Wthout additional federal funding to avert these
shortfalls, Alaska, along with other states may have
to reduce their SCH P enrollnment, placing health
i nsurance coverage nationally for over 500,000 |ow
income children at risk. States may also be forced to
enact harnful changes to their SCH P progranms, such as
curtailing benefits, increasing beneficiary cost-
sharing or reducing provider paynents.

Congress has acted in the past to address SCH P
shortfalls successfully and can do so agai n.

To the end, with you permssion I'd |like to read the

openi ng paragraph of the update in your packets from
Fam | i es USA published on March 29t h:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2007



"Before adjourning for their April recess, both the
House and Senate passed their budget resolutions.
Bot h chanbers included a commitnent of $50 billion for
SCHI P. The $50 billion will go a long way toward
meeti ng our goal of providing health coverage to the 9
mllion <children in this country wthout health
i nsur ance. It shows that Congress places a high
priority on reauthorizing SCH P and on expanding
coverage for children as we enter into the next phase
of the debate over reauthorization.”

We ask your support of SIR 1 to add the Al aska State
Legislature to the many voices urging our delegation
and the rest of Congress to enact |egislation
i medi ately that provides additional SCH P funding to
ensure that all states have sufficient federal funding
to sustain their existing SCH P progranms in FY 2007.

3:10: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether SIJR 1 differs from the
house conpani on resol ution.

MR. BENAVI DES opined that there is no difference.

3:10: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report SJR 1, 25-LS0476\A, out
of comittee Wi th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, SIJR 1 was
reported out of House Health, Education and Social Services
St andi ng Comm ttee.

3:11: 01 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from3:10 p.m to 3:11 p. m

HB 181- TRAFFI C CFFENSES: FI NES/ SCHOOL ZONES

3:11: 44 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 181, "An Act relating to traffic offenses and
traffic offenses conmtted in a school zone; and providing for
an effective date.”" [Before the conmttee was CSHB 181, Version
25-1LS0613\ L, Luckhaupt, 3/20/07.]

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2007



3:11: 53 PM

ROBERT MYERS, Intern to Representative Peggy W]Ison, Al aska
State Legislature, addressed questions that were raised during
the bill's first hearing. He clarified that the |arge penalties
assessed by the bill are designed to clearly define unacceptable
behavi or. M. Mers pointed out that, in 1998, the |egislature
passed double traffic fines in construction zones to protect
construction workers and last year, simlar |egislation was
passed to protect the public in highway safety corridors. Thus,
this legislation is needed to protect school children just as
much as construction workers and the general public. I n
addition, he explained that pressuring |ocal agencies for
i ncreased enforcenent of existing |aws places an undue burden on
police forces and the enforcenent of laws remains in the domain
of local nmunicipalities and the Al aska State Troopers.

MR. MYERS continued to explain that data from 2002 through 2004,
shows that there was a 33 percent reduction in construction zone

accidents; however, overall accidents rose 18 percent. He
opined that this data tends to support the effectiveness of the
double traffic fines in construction zones. He concluded by

saying that accidents in school zones increased by 110 percent
during the sanme tinme period.

3:14: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how nany of the school zone
accidents invol ved chil dren.

MR. MYERS responded that the data does not specify.
3:15: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES agreed wth the intent of the bill;
however, he said that he has a concern about the difficulty in
collecting the fines. He expressed his hope that this may serve
as a deterrent and that whatever can be done to slow people down
in school zones is worth a try.

3:16: 37 PM
MR. MYERS replied that the problem of collecting traffic fines
will exist whether this legislation passes or not. Resear ch

during the drafting of the bill showed that non-paynent of
traffic violations is nost prevalent in Anchorage. He opined

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2007



that the collection problem does not detract fromthe nerits of
HB 181.

3:17:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked whether canmera nonitoring can be
used to enforce the school speed zones.

MR. MYERS assured the committee that canera surveillance and
ticketing can be set-up; however, the Al aska Suprene Court rul ed
that surveillance is a violation of privacy rights.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN opined that violations may be chall enged
when the fine is $1, 000. He then asked for an explanation of
Sec. 5, that annuls 13 AAC 02.325(d) and 13 AAC 03. 325. (d).

MR. MYERS expl ained that Sec. 5 replaces the old definition of a
school zone with the new definition in Sec. 4. He said that the
old definition uses the presence of a crosswalk to determne a
school speed zone. The new definition determnes that a schoo

zone is marked by speed limt signs and the fines are effective

only during the tines indicated by those signs. For exanple
double fines will not be in effect at 10:00 p.m in July.
3:21: 06 PM

CHAIR WLSON informed the commttee that the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF) requested the
clarification of signage for school zones.

3:21: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN expressed his understanding that a sign
that states "School Zone" indicates the applicability of the
doubl e fi nes.

MR. MYERS explained that a driver would only be subjected to
double fines if there is a sign that states "School Zone" and
states a speed limt and a tine frame, or "Wen Children
Present.™

3:.22:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH asked whet her DOT&PF  has been
consulted on this bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2007



MR. MYERS affirned that DOT&PF was consulted on the school zone
definition.

REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH asked whether there is a fiscal note
for the cost of new signage.

MR. MYERS advi sed that there would not be a need for new signs.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH questioned M. Mers about the tine
limts that need to be added to the existing signs.

MR. MYERS answered that information is already on the posted
si gns.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH recalled that at her local school
there are flashing lights that indicate the school speed zone,
but there is no tine designation.

MR. MYERS expl ai ned that the school speed zone is only in effect
when the lights are flashing.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH r emar ked:

The lights are only flashing on a collector street,
which would be a street that's designated as a
particular traffic volune. But the nore dangerous
acci dents happen closer to the school where there is
no flashing light, there's only a free-standing sign

that says "School Zone" going in, | think they're
i ke, neon yellow right now, going in, but there's no
desi gnati on. So, if there's no tinme that you are
going to add to the sign, ... it's 24/7 that we're

going to enforce it from the police departnent
There's after school activities, there's basketball on
t he week-ends. ... A school zone tine, as | understand
it, is the hours of operation, 30 mnutes before and
30 minutes after, at |east at an el enentary school. ..

3:25:10 PM

MR. MYERS deferred the question to the legislative liaison from
DOT &PF.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH further asked whether the sponsor has
garnered comments from the police departnents around the state.
She stated her interest in knowing if the police departnents
believe that the bill wll be easy to inplenment.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- April 3, 2007



MR. MYERS assured the conmttee that the sponsor consulted with
the Departnment of Public Safety, and its issues wth HB 181 were
addressed in the Comrmittee Substitute (CS). He noted that there
are no |laws being created; the bill nmerely alters the penalties
for those already in force.

3:26:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER asked for the difference between
"annul ling" a statute and "repealing" a statute.

MR. MYERS said that annulled is the correct term for changes in
the adm ni strative code.

3:27:16 PM

MARY SI ROKY, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF),
i ntroduced Kurtis Smth.

3:27:48 PM

KURTIS SMTH, Traffic and Safety Engineer, D vision of Design &
Engi neering Services, Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities (DOT&PF), asked for clarification of the question.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH restated her question regarding the
lack of a time designation on the signs in the school zone of
her | ocal school.

3:28:54 PM

MR SMTH answered that DOT&PF wll not require additional
signage. There are three ways for signs to indicate when school
speed zones are in effect: flashing lights; "When Children are

Present”; and by day of week and tine of day.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether |aw enforcenent could
i ssue a double fine ticket during week-end activities.

MR. SM TH expl ai ned that the "When Children are Present" sign is
problematic for |law enforcenment. He expressed his understanding
that the law could be enforced on week-ends and after school
hour s.

3:30: 01 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether there is a traffic safety
probl em at school s.

MR. SM TH responded that the roads can always be safer; however
DOT&PF annual safety reviews do not identify school zones as
probl em ar eas. He opined that conpliance with traffic laws in
school zones is reportedly better than in other places.

3:30: 56 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r enar ked:

So, if we were to accept that we could do sonmething to
make them safer, or that there was any change needed,
do you think that doubling fines would be the first
way you'd go for it?

MR SM TH answer ed:

| think enforcenent is the nobst inportant thing
Fines are already higher in school zones and
enforcenent, | think, is the key.

3:31:42 PM

MR MYERS clarified that present law elevates the fines in
school zones for speeding only, not for other traffic offenses.

CHAIR W LSON asked what the difference would be between speedi ng
and traffic offenses.

MR. MYERS said that other traffic offenses include running stop
si gns and unsaf e passing.

3:32:28 PM

DENNI S COOK, Transportation Coordinator, Fairbanks North Star
Borough School District, stated his support for HB 181. He
informed the commttee that his office receives many conplaints
about vehicles speeding in school zones. He opined that the
bill wll increase safety for children walking to school and
home during the nonths of inclenment weather and darkness. I n
his personal experience he has seen vehicles speeding in schoo
zones. He said that double fines are effective in slowng
vehicles in construction zones. M. Cook thanked the committee
for | ooking closely at HB 181.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2007



3:34: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether the $1,000 fine is an
arbitrary anmount or the maxi mum set by the court system

3:34:43 PM

CHAIR WLSON responded that the fine is not to exceed $1,000
and the judge woul d deci de on the exact anount.

3:35: 00 PM

MR. MYERS explained that a traffic fine is set by a bai
schedul e established by the Al aska Suprene Court. The current
maxi mum fine for speeding is $300. The bill wll increase the
maxi mum possible fine for speeding to $1, 000. Therefore, the
anount of the doubled fines will not be limted by the current

ceiling of $300.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH verified that there is a fornula that
uses the speed of the vehicle to calculate the fine.

3:36: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Cook whether enhanced and
i mproved enforcenent of existing speed limts would inprove the
safety in school zones.

MR. COOX said yes. Speaki ng of his experience along the Parks
H ghway, he opined that the double fines are an effective
deterrent in construction zones.

3:37:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN observed that the fine also includes
doubl e points against a driver's license and if a driver has two
school zone speeding tickets within two years, the license is
revoked.

MR. MYERS agreed. He added that the first tine a license is
revoked for traffic points, it is lost for 30 days.

3:38: 07 PM

LT. RODNEY DI AL, Deputy Commander, A Detachnent, Division of
Al aska State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety, recited the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2007



schedul e of points assessed toward the suspension or |loss of a
i cense.

3:38:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how often the state troopers patro
t he school zones.

LT. DIAL answered that coverage varies upon the area. I n
Ket chi kan, traffic offenses in school zones are |ow, however, a
significant amount of federal support for extra highway safety
patrols can be used for enforcenent in school traffic zones. He
informed the conmittee that the percentage of patrols is
community specific.

3:39: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the public's awareness of
nore coverage by |l aw enforcenent results in better conpliance.

LT. DI AL answered yes. For exanple, he said that the troopers
advertise around the holidays about [increased] DU enforcenent
and it is effective.

3:40: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Lt. Dial for his approach to
i nprovi ng school zone safety.

LT. DAL responded that he would dedicate officers to patrol
school zones, during school hours, on a random basis.

3:41:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked whet her increased fines would
i ncrease enforcenent.

LT. DIAL replied that the amount of the fine is irrelevant to
the enforcenent decision. Troopers base enforcement on the
greatest need; however, increased fines may have an effect on
conpl i ance.
3:41: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r emar ked:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- April 3, 2007



Kurt Smith, who was with the traffic, traffic and
safety engineer with the Departnent of [Transportation
& Public Facilities] said, "fines are already higher
I s that

in school zones, enforcenment is the key."
sonet hing that you'd agree with?

LT. DI AL agreed.
3:42: 24 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whet her doubling fines in other
is effective.

traffic areas

LT. DI AL responded that doubling fines may act as a deterrent in
is sufficient
t he additi onal

hi ghway safety traffic corridors where there
advertising and signage to make drivers aware of
cost of a violation.

CHAIR WLSON concluded that a difference wll
W t hout new si gns.

LT. DI AL sai d:

not

be nade

| think what I'mtrying to say is that if the public's
not aware of it, they just wind up with a citation

that's a |l|ot higher. | can tell you that ny
experience as a patrol trooper, people are not even
aware of the differences, in mnmany cases, between
muni ci palities in the state. For exanple, Anchorage
Police Departnent tends to have fines that are double
those of the state troopers ... if it's clearly
communi cated | believe it will have nore of an effect.

3:43: 57 PM

CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.

3:44: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of f ered Conceptual Anendnent 1 that read:

Citations my be issued wutilizing autonmated photo
by | ocal

radar or simlar technology if authorized
or di nance.

3:44:58 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 14-

Apri

3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH obj ect ed.
3:45: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that DOI&PF and the troopers agree
that enforcenent is the key. He opi ned that when peopl e expect
enforcenent, the public is nore conpliant and the awareness of
enforcenment by radar wll encourage conpliance and pronote
safety for school children

3:46: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN recal |l ed that DOT&PF concl uded that schoo
zones are safe, and that Lt. Dial testified that |aw enforcenent
is placed where it is nobst needed. He said he did not support
t he anendnent .

3:47:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH rel ayed that Anchorage has experience
with photo radar as a neans of enforcenent. The Anchorage
assenbly inplenented a photo radar program in school zones;
however, there was a subsequent ballot initiative and the city

overwhel m ngly repealed the ordinance. The City of Anchorage
wanted a police officer, not a canmera, on site to enforce
traffic violations. She said that photo radar did nake it

easier to cite violators, although public opinion was that the
program was inplenmented to raise revenue.

3:49: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH renoved her objection.
3:50: 03 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that, there being no further objection
Amendrent 1 was adopt ed.

3:50: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that she agreed that enforcenent
is the issue and the success of the program depends upon
citizens' awareness of the double fine zone. She offered
Conceptual Amendnent 2 which read:

Signs will be added to inform the public that double
fines are enforced in a particul ar area.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 15- April 3, 2007



3:50:49 PM
CHAI R W LSON obj ected for discussion.
3:50: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated that, even though there will be
capital costs, it is inportant to have appropriate signage to
rai se the educati on and awareness | evels of the public.

3:51:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noted that the anendnent does not i nclude
the limt of $1, 000.

CHAIR WLSON said, "That follows with the rest of the bill."
3:51: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH pointed out that, in Sec. 1, the bil
speaks to double fines. She recalled testinmony that explained
that the fine is calculated by a forrmula based on the speed of
the vehicle. She suggested that the signs should be simlar to
t hose posted in highway traffic safety corridors.

3:52:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked whether signs wll be posted at
every school in Al aska.

3:52: 34 PM

MR. MYERS informed the commttee that DOT&PF gui del i nes, copies
of which are included in the commttee packet, determ ne where
signs need to be placed. He noted that sone rural areas are not
counted as school zones.

3:53: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that the signs need to indicate
doubl e fines and double points in order to be a deterrent.

3:53:47 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH acknow edged that Representati ve
Gardner made a valid point; however, she encouraged the use of
exi sting and consi stent signage.

3:54:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES observed that the signs indicate double
penal ties.

3:54:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON offered Concept ual Amendmrent 1 to
Conceptual Anmendnent 2 that adds:

and if automatic technology is authorized the
signs shall so indicate.

3:55: 36 PM
CHAI R W LSON obj ected for discussion
3:55:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated that the use of technology is a
local community or nunicipal choice. If a local conmunity
wi shes to utilize photo radar, the community could choose to add
an appropriate sign.

3:56: 58 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Neuman, Seaton,
Cissna, and Roses voted in favor of Anmendnent 1 to Conceptua
Amendnent 2. Representatives Gardner, Fairclough, and WIson
voted against it. Therefore, Amendnent 1 to Conceptua
Amendnent 2 was adopted by a vote of 4-3.

3:58: 15 PM

CHAIR WLSON renoved her objection to Conceptual Anendnent 2, as
anended. There being no further objection, Conceptual Amendnent
2, as anended, was adopt ed.

3:58: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked about the effect of the new

signage on local comunities regarding the use of photo radar
enf orcenment .

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2007



3:59:25 PM

CHAIR W LSON observed that the amendment will require a fiscal
not e.

3:59:47 PM
MR SMTH opined that double fine signs wll be installed
initially, and later, as appropriate, the local jurisdiction

would add a separate plate to notify drivers of radar
enf or cenent .

4:00: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated his understanding that DOT&PF is
only responsi bl e for signage on state roads.

4:00:49 PM

MR. SM TH answered that DOT&PF is responsible for signs on state
roads and on new proj ects.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether DOT&PF will have the
responsibility to install signs for school zones on state roads,
or on all roads, in response to this |egislation.

MR. SM TH opi ned that DOT&PF' s responsibility would be for state
r oads.

4:01: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH re-stated the intent of the anmnendnent.
She sai d:

The Departnment of Transportation, on a state road,
would go through, at their earliest convenience, to
inplenent this law and place a sign that showed a
double penalty. ... And that we would follow up, then

with how we woul d enforce the "and portion"...

4:01: 59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN agreed with Representative Fairclough, and

then said that the anmendnent to the anendnent would add that the
photo radar sign would be placed by the |ocal comunities.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2007



4:02:19 PM
CHAI R W LSON st at ed:

that's on the record, that, that, if the comunity
chose to do that, then that would be their
responsibility to mke sure there was adequate
si gnage. And, obviously, that wouldn't be pernmanent,
because that's not always there, those things can be
noved, and so ...

4:02: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON advised that if a nunicipality authorizes
the use of radar, then it would be noted on the school zone

si gn. A community may set this type of enforcenment up on a
tenporary or permanent basis, and the sign should reflect the
presence of radar enforcenent. He opined that the anendnent

clearly states that a local ordinance is needed to allow such
t echnol ogy.

4:04: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated the need for a [revised] fiscal
not e.

4:04:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 181, Version 25-
LS0613\L, Luckhaupt, 3/20/07, as anended, out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

4: 05: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN obj ect ed and recal |l ed t hat t he
representative from DOT&PF testified that school zones are
generally safe, and that the trooper testified that enforcenent
is the key. He stressed that school zones should be made safe;
however, this is not the approach.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated her objection, for the sane
reasons as Representative Neuman, and also due to the lack of

docunentati on supporting the bill. She said that testinony
supporting the bill was limted to one nmenber of the public and
agency support is absent. Representative Gardner said that she
felt that the bill is unnecessary.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 3, 2007



4:07:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH spoke in favor of noving the bill,
having explained the previous reservation she had about the

$1, 000 maxi mum  She said that she felt the amendnents will aid
in educating the public and that the judiciary conmttee can
further refine the bill, | f necessary. Representati ve

Fairclough referred to a letter of support fromthe Al aska Peace
O ficers Association, and other testinony supporting the bill
She expressed her belief that education will provide nore of a
deterrent than an individual's receipt of a costly ticket.

4:09: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA stated that the anendnent that requires
the radar enforcenent issue to be addressed at the |ocal |evel
is inportant. She recalled that this is not a new idea;
however, as long as it is a local choice to use this, it may be
hel pful .

4:10: 52 PM
CHAI R W LSON observed that, although enforcenent may be the key,

sonetinmes law officers are not avail able. She opined that the
threat of double fines can nmake a difference.

4:11:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated his support for the bill, even
t hough the fine increase may not change behavi or.

4:12: 08 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Ci ssna, Roses,

Fai rcl ough, Seaton, and WIson voted in favor of reporting CSHB
181, Version 25-LS0613\L, Luckhaupt, 3/20/07, as anended, from
committee. Representatives Gardner and Neunan voted against it.
Therefore, CSHB 181(HES) was reported out of the House Health

Educati on and Social Services Standing Commttee by a vote of 5-
2.

4:13: 08 PM
The conmttee took an at-ease from4:13 p.m to 4:14 p. m

HB 100- Al R AMBULANCE SERVI CES

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 3, 2007



4:14: 27 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 100, "An Act relating to
exenpting certain air anbul ance services from insurance
regulation and requiring certain air anbulance services to
provi de services."

4:14: 47 PM
KAREN LIDSTER, staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, prinme sponsor, informed the commttee that

there is a CS for SSHB 100, the legislation to exenpt air
anbul ance services from insurance regulations under AS 21.03.
Two anendnents were passed at the previous hearing;, Amrendnment 1
gave the definition of an air anbul ance service and Amendment 2
l[imted the subscription period to not greater than two years

Ms. Lidster introduced Linda Hall to answer questions regarding
t he i nsurance code.

4:16: 23 PM

LI NDA HALL, Director, Anchorage Ofice, Division of |Insurance
Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
(DCCED), stated that she was avail able to answer questions.

4:16:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether the anendnents to SSHB
100 are de facto insurance regulation. She pointed out that, if
passed, the Division of Insurance wll be responsible for
conplaints and conpliance relating to this |egislation.

M5. HALL answered that an agency is always needed to enforce any
statute and to provide opinions thereof; however, the enforcing
agency for this issue may not need to be the Division of

| nsur ance. She recalled that the bill relates to consumer
protection, and her conversation with Cyde (Ed) Sniffen, Jr.,
Senior Assistant Attorney General, Conmercial/Fair Business
Section, Departnment of Law (DOL), who heads the consuner
protection wunit, indicated that if there is no other state
agency that has oversight, the consunmer protection unit wll
take on the responsibility for oversight. The consumer
protection wunit of DOL investigates reports of unfair or
deceptive conduct, or sales practices, and fraud. Ms. Hall

advised that the terns of subscriptions sold, and related

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 3, 2007



issues, wll fall under the jurisdiction of the consuner
protection unit.

4:19:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether the sale of product
menber shi ps, by air anbul ance services and through a non profit
organi zation, is selling insurance.

M5. HALL said that is correct.

4:20: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN sai d:

like here in the [bill] title it says "requiring

certain air anbulance services to provide services",
so this states, that's actually saying that the state
is telling a private industry that you have to do
this?

MB. LI DSTER answer ed:

Representative Neuman, it is not telling air anbul ance
services that they have to do this, it also states
that there are designations on qualifying as an air
anbul ance service, but they do not have to offer these
menberships. No, sir.

4:21:43 PM
CHAIR WLSON of fered that the service is optional
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN repeated his statenent:

o it says requiring air anbulance services to
provi de those services. |It's ... confusing there.

MS. LI DSTER remnar ked:
The question would be that the requirenent is that you
cannot deny ... nedical service in an energency to, to
someone whether or not they have a subscription or
menbership with you, that was the requirenent there.

4:22:27 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her belief that this is an
i nsurance product that needs to be regul ated. She read the
title and asked Ms. Hall to explain why this is not insurance.

M5. HALL explained that Title 21.03 gives the D vision of
Insurance a list of itens that are specifically excluded from

the definition of insurance. For exanple; certain kinds of
service contracts, that are |ow cost products and not a serious
source of financial harm to a consuner. The Division of
| nsurance regul ates hone warranties, but not a service contract
for a toaster. Ms. Hall stated that a public policy decision

needs to be nmade to determne whether the |egislature wants
subscription services, such as nentioned in SSHB 100, to be sold

in the state. |If so, policy will need to be witten instructing
the Division of Insurance on how they are to be regul at ed. MVs.
Hal | described division requirenents that are inposed on an

i nsurance conpany such as; deposits in the bank, proof of
capital and surplus, annual audits, and tri-annual financial
exans. She opined that air anbulance conpanies would not
qual i fy; therefore, an unique and new regul atory mechani sm may
need to be created. Ms. Hall stated her support for this bill
but that she does not believe that the Division of Insurance
shoul d regul ate these subscriptions as insurance.

4:26:40 PM

CHAI R W LSON descri bed her experience with Medivacs, as a nurse,
and opined that this type of coverage for a person could be a
confort.

4:28: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r emar ked

| just want to be certain | absolutely understand.

Basically, it is an insurance product that they're
selling, and they've been selling it illegally, but
we' ve chosen to be sonewhat synpathetic to ... and not

pursue it, and instead what we're going to do is
| egislatively say the product isn't insurance and nake
it a consumer protection issue. So it would be
nmonitored and the interests of Al askans would be
protected by Ed Sniffen and the people in his
depart nment.

M5. HALL said that there are differing opinions wthin the
di vi sion about whether this product is insurance. Although the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 23- April 3, 2007



guestion surfaced years ago, and the division has advised
consuners that the product is insurance, a formal |egal opinion
from DOL has not been solicited. She declined to say whether
t he product is insurance.

4:29:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her belief that life in smal

comunities is becom ng nore expensive and residents are | eaving
because of that. How the state deals with health care costs is
possibly the single nost inportant issue of livability in rura
areas. She opined that regulation should only occur when the

need arises; to do otherwse will shape the products avail able
to the public from the private sector. Representati ve Ci ssnha
t hen sai d:

W need a future for experinentation in bringing down

health care costs. W need to put the safety pieces
in place, | agree, but not before we have a problem
and ... I'mwth this bill.

4:32:30 PM

M5. HALL stated that the one of the considerations on this issue
is that resources are based on consuner conplaints. She noted
that there has never been a conpl aint about Medivac services in
Al aska or 27 other states; this is indicative of a product that
has not created an issue.

4:33:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES clarified that this bill states that if a
subscription is sold for air anbulance services, the state is
saying that you are not selling an insurance policy, regardl ess
of the statenent in the bill title. He asked:

If | came to you and | wanted to, if | came to the
state and wanted to get a business license to run an
air anbulance service, am | be required to have
certain insurance for my conpany in place when | go to
get that license and operate within the paraneters of
the state? Worker's conpensation insurance, liability

i nsurance, so on and so on.

MS. HALL responded yes. She added that previous testinony spoke
to the clear requirenments of insurance.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES t hen asked:

As the comm ssioner for the departnent that regul ates
insurance, if | were to read this and it says this is
an act relating to the exenpting [of] air anbulance
services from insurance regul ations, does that nean |
don't have to have any insurance any nore?

M5. HALL replied, "I would not read it that way ... | clearly
woul d not support that."

4:35:13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES repeated his question and sai d:

: | just want it on the record that it's not the
intent of this individual sitting here that's voting
on this bill, that that's what this neans.

M5. HALL agreed that it is inportant to establish legislative
i ntent.

4:35:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whet her anmendnents to the bill have
been adopt ed.

CHAIR WLSON confirnmed that Anmendments 1 and 2 have been
adopt ed.

4:36:20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER of f ered Anrendnment 3, that read

Page 1, line 1, followi ng "regulation":
Insert ", prohibiting sale of air anbulance
services to persons already covered,"”

Page 1, line 5, follow ng "services."
I nsert "(a)"

Page 1, following line 7:
I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(b) An air anbul ance service may not sell a
subscription to a person who has full coverage for air
anbul ance services from another source, including the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 25- April 3, 2007



| ndi an Heal t h Servi ce, Medi cai d, or private
i nsurance. "

4:36:32 PM

CHAI R W LSON obj ected for discussion

4:36: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that many people have health
insurance that wll cover the cost of an air anbul ance.
Therefore, the sale of a subscription for additional coverage
woul d be taking advantage of the buyer. Amendrment 3 will

prevent the sale of a subscription to persons already covered.

4:37: 06 PM

CHAIR WLSON offered Amendnment 1 to Anendnent 3 that adds to
line 11 "or" between "Health Service" and "Medicaid", and
strikes out "or private insurance". She opined that private

insurance may not totally cover the cost of air anbul ance
transportation.

4:37:54 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d:
The sentence actually reads, "An air anbul ance service

may not sell a subscription to a person who has ful
coverage for air anbulance services from another

source. " So, if you have private insurance that my
pick up part of it, then you could still buy this
policy....

4:38:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES r emar ked:

As a person that has about three coverage's, | maybe
don't have 100 percent insurance ... we continue to
keep tal king about how this isn't insurance, but this
anendnent ties it directly to insurance ... you keep
arguing that it's [not] an insurance policy but you
want to those exenpt people that have insurance from
buying it if you re already covered..

4:39:21 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA stated her personal desire for "enotiona
i nsurance" rather than to |look at this as a commercial insurance
product. She said that an individual living in a rural area may
want to keep his/her bases covered regarding transportation
sources and should be able to choose to purchase what he/she
want s. Representative Cissnha recalled that her constituents on
Prince of Wales Island conplained about their |ack of choice.
She opined that this is an issue of choice.

4:40: 56 PM
CHAIR WLSON added that, even wth 100 percent coverage,

insurance may not allow full paynent because the air anbul ance
charges are beyond the allowable cost |imt for the service.

4:41:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that the need for air anbul ance
services is not limted to rural areas. He recalled that
W tnesses have stated that the bill will have a direct negative
i mpact on their businesses. He cautioned that the anendnent
ties the bill to insurance, and nay not stand a | egal chall enge.
4:43:13 PM

CHAIR WLSON comented that for three years this has been an
i ssue, and no one has gone out of business. The sponsors are
trying to help people in rural areas.

4:43: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that requiring the air anbul ance
service to determine an individual's private insurance coverage
is extrenely problemtic. He stated his support for the
anmendnent to the anendnent.

4:45: 09 PM

There being no further objection, Anendnent 1 to Anendnent 3 was
adopt ed.

4:45: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether "prohibiting the sale of air
anbul ance services to persons already covered" pertains to the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- April 3, 2007



sale of nenbership subscriptions service only and not to air
anbul ance services in general.

4:46: 22 PM

CHAI R W LSON suggested that the sane term nology as read in line
|1 could be added to the anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that adding verbiage to the
title woul d be cunbersone.

4:47:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA stated her objection and said that people
have the right to choice.

4:47: 32 PM

VB. LI DSTER commented that, to insure the intent of the
amendnent , the title my need to reflect Representati ve
Gardner’s addi tion.

CHAIR WLSON suggested the addition of the word "certain" in
front of "persons."

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER di sagreed. She stated that her intent is
to prevent a situation simlar to one where a person sells an
el derly person a new roof that they do not need.

4:49: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the intent is to [prohibit]
ai r ambul ance services or the subscription services.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER replied, "The sale of subscription
services."

4:50: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER t hen offered Amendnent 2 to Anmendnment 3,
that inserted the word "subscription”™ between "anbulance" and

"services".

There being no objection, Anmendnent 2 to Amendnment 3 was
adopt ed.

4:50:43 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her concern that decisions are
being made w thout the perspective of the people who will be
using this service.

4:51: 39 PM

CHAI R W LSON renoved her objection to Armendnent 3, as anended.
4:51:59 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that Amendnent 3, as anended, is before
the comm ttee.

4:52: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA sust ai ned her objection.

4:52: 54 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Gardner, Roses,
Fai rcl ough, Neuman, and Seaton voted in favor of Amendment 3, as
anended. Representatives Cissna and WIson voted against it.

Therefore, the Amendnent 3, as anended, passed by a vote of 5-2.
4:53: 59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the Division of |nsurance

guestioned whether the legislature wants to make a policy
decision on the sale of subscriptions in Al aska and the

regul ati on thereof. He recalled the testinony offered opposing
this bill, and other testinony that spoke to a huge marketing
schenme of air anbulance services subscriptions that would
generate $2.5 mllion for one conpany. He stated that the
exi sting system of air anbul ance services is working in Al aska
and a conpetitive marketing venture is not necessary. In

addition, he opined that testinony did not convince him that
patient care would be inproved by the passage of SSHB 100.
Representative Seaton said he will not support this bill.

4:56: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated his concern about the testinony of
an individual whose air anbul ance conpany serves 75 percent of
the state. He described how nedical care nay be delayed while a
patient waits for his subscribed service, and observed that this
bill will not provide an added |evel of confort or confidence to

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 29- April 3, 2007



subscri bers. Representative Roses said that the value of the
bill goes to the one business that wants to sell subscriptions.
He stated his opposition to the bill.

4:58:41 PM

CHAIR W LSON described how difficult Medivac transportati on can
be with the current services that are avail able. She expressed
her di sappoi ntnent at the opposition to SSHB 100.

5:00: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA stated that the cost of health care in the
United States and in rural Alaska is a problem Comruni ties
need to have to find ways to economze; in fact, in the Yukon
Flats area, health care professionals are flying in on a regular
basi s. The nunber of energencies is being reduced by this
preventive health care. Economc solutions that allow people to
live in their villages, in a healthy way are called for. She
said that unhealthy products are being flown in to these
villages instead of bringing in health care. Representati ve
Cissna stressed that the bill should be given a chance to work.

5:03: 38 PM

The committee took an at-ease from5:03 p.m to 5:04 p.m

5:04: 29 PM

CHAI R W LSON cancel | ed the hearing on HB 207

5:04: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES observed that SSHB 100 does not state that

if a subscription is purchased that the Medivac flight is paid
for. He then remarked:

All | heard the person that spoke of subscriptions
[say] ... "Well we would cover, we wouldn't go after
them for ... the co-pay." [ They] didn't say they
woul dn't be going after paynent. Nor anywhere in here
does it, do we have a sanple of what the subscription
woul d look like if somebody sold it. How do we know
we're not letting them sell a nenbership and then
they're going to have to go after themto collect the
fees anyway. There's no guarantee of that in this
bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- April 3, 2007



5:05:39 PM

CHAI R W LSON announced that SSHB 100 woul d be hel d over.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adjourned at 5:05 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 31- April 3, 2007



